Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 09-0243 MC



)

VUSHAJ CONSTRUCTION, INC.,
)




)



Respondent.
)

ORDER

Vushaj Construction, Inc. (“Vushaj”) used a driver in a safety-sensitive function prior to receiving a negative pre-employment test result and thus failed to comply with 49 CFR 
§ 382.301.  We grant the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission’s (“MHTC”) motion for summary decision in part.  

The MHTC shall notify this Commission by December 23, 2009, whether this Commission should schedule a hearing on Counts II, III, and IV.  

Procedure

On February 13, 2009, the MHTC filed a complaint.  On March 4, 2009, Vushaj received a copy of our notice of complaint/notice of hearing and a copy of the complaint.  Vushaj did not file an answer to the complaint.  On June 19, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  We gave Vushaj until July 6, 2009, to respond, but it did not.  On July 28, 2009, we 
issued an order denying the motion.  On July 30, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion to reconsider, with the correct Exhibit 6 attached.  We gave Vushaj until August 24, 2009, to respond to the motion to reconsider, but it did not.  
We grant the motion to reconsider, and we grant the MHTC’s motion for summary decision in part.  

Findings of Fact

1.
Vushaj is a corporation whose terminal is located at 309 E. Courtois, St. Louis, Missouri.  
2.
On July 9, 2008, Vushaj used driver Senad Hamzik to drive a 1993 Mack dump truck with a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of more than 26,000 pounds to haul dirt in intrastate commerce from St. Louis, Missouri, to Valley Park, Missouri.  Vushaj had not received a negative pre-employment controlled substance test result for Hamzik.  
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Vushaj violated the law.


We may grant the MHTC's motion for summary decision if the MHTC establishes facts that entitle it to a favorable decision and Vushaj fails to genuinely dispute such facts.
  
The MHTC has the authority to enforce “any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state[.]”

Count I

The MHTC asks us to find that Vushaj violated 49 CFR § 382.301:
(a) Prior to the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions for an employer, the driver shall undergo testing for controlled substances as a condition prior to being used, unless the employer uses the exception in paragraph (b) of this section.  No employer shall allow a driver, who the employer intends to hire or use, to perform safety-sensitive functions unless the employer has received a controlled substances test result from the MRO or C/TPA indicating a verified negative test result for that driver.
49 CFR § 382.107 provides:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds); or
(2) Has a gross vehicle weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds)[.]

*   *   *

Driver means any person who operates a commercial motor vehicle.  This includes, but is not limited to:  Full time, regularly employed drivers; casual, intermittent or occasional drivers; leased drivers and independent owner-operator contractors.
*   *   *

Performing (a safety-sensitive function) means a driver is considered to be performing a safety-sensitive function during any period in which he or she is actually performing, ready to perform, or immediately available to perform any safety-sensitive functions.
*   *   *

Safety-sensitive function means all time from the time a driver begins to work or is required to be in readiness to work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for performing work.  Safety-sensitive functions shall include:
*   *   *

( 3) All time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in operation[.]


On July 9, 2008, Vushaj allowed Hamzik to operate a commercial motor vehicle – a safety-sensitive function – before the company had received his verified negative controlled substance test result.  Vushaj violated 49 CFR § 382.301(a).  

Count II


The MHTC asserts that Vushaj’s employee, Paula Hemm, operated commercial motor vehicles without recording her duty status on June 7 and 10, 2008.  The MHTC’s Exhibit 6 fails to set forth facts showing that Hemm failed to record her duty status on those dates.  The exhibit states:  

Part 395.8(a)—Failing to require driver to make a record of duty status.

1.  On 06/07/08 Vushaj Construction Inc used driver Paula Hemm to drive a 1993 Mack Dump Truck, Vin #: 1M2B209C3PM010696, MO license #: 483-040, GVWR > 26,000 lbs, hauling rock/dirt in intrastate commerce from Pagedale, MO to St. Louis, MO.

2.  On 06/10/08 Vushaj Construction Inc used driver Paula Hemm to drive a 1993 Mack Dump Truck, Vin #: 1M2B209C3PM010696, MO license #: 483-040, GVWR > 26,000 lbs, hauling rock/dirt in intrastate commerce from Pagedale, MO to St. Louis, MO.  

3.  On 06/28/08 Vushaj Construction Inc used driver Alberto Vushaj to drive a 1993 Mack Dump Truck, Vin #: 1M2B209C3PM010696, MO license # 483-040, GVWR > 26,000 lbs, hauling clean fill in intrastate commerce from St. Louis, MO to Valley Park, MO.    
We find the heading insufficient as a statement of fact as to the conduct; this is merely a citation to the regulation and does not establish that Vushaj committed conduct that violated the regulation.   The MHTC’s Exhibit 2 shows that Hemm failed to make a record of duty status for a trip on June 11, 2008, and shows nothing as to any alleged violations on June 7 and 10.  No other exhibit establishes the facts asserted in Count II.  Exhibit 11 merely states that Vushaj 
failed to produce documentation upon request.  We deny the MHTC’s motion as to Count II because the MHTC has not established undisputed facts entitling it to relief on this issue.   

Count III

The MHTC asserts that Vushaj’s employee, Paula Hemm, operated commercial motor vehicles on June 7 and 10, 2008, without completing a driver vehicle inspection report for those dates.  The MHTC’s Exhibit 6 fails to set forth facts showing that Hemm failed to complete a driver vehicle inspection report for those dates.  Once again, the exhibit contains a heading citing the regulation, but fails to show that Hemm committed conduct that violated the regulation.  The MHTC’s Exhibit 2 indicates that Hamzik failed to complete a driver vehicle inspection report for July 9, 2008 – the MHTC gives this as an “example.”  However, the MHTC’s complaint does not assert that Hamzik failed to complete a driver vehicle inspection report for July 9, 2008.  We cannot find a violation on the basis of conduct that is not set forth in the complaint.
  No other exhibit establishes the facts asserted in Count III.  Exhibit 11 merely states that Vushaj failed to produce documentation upon request.  We deny the MHTC’s motion as to Count III because the MHTC has not established undisputed facts entitling it to relief on this issue.   
Count IV


The MHTC asserts that Vushaj’s employee, Paula Hemm, operated commercial motor vehicles on June 7 and 11, 2008, that had not been periodically inspected within the last 12 months.  The MHTC’s Exhibit 6 fails to set forth facts showing that Hemm used a commercial motor vehicle on those dates that had not been periodically inspected.  Once again, the exhibit contains a heading citing the regulation, but fails to show that Hemm committed conduct that violated the regulation.  The MHTC’s Exhibit 2 sets forth as an “example” that Hamzik drove a 
commercial motor vehicle on July 9, 2008, that had not been periodically inspected.  However, the MHTC’s complaint does not assert that Hamzik drove a commercial motor vehicle on July 9, 2008, that had not been periodically inspected.  We cannot find a violation on the basis of conduct that is not set forth in the complaint.
  No other exhibit establishes the facts asserted in Count IV.  Exhibit 11 merely states that Vushaj failed to produce documentation upon request. We deny the MHTC’s motion as to Count IV because the MHTC has not established undisputed facts entitling it to relief on this issue.   
Summary


Vushaj violated 49 CFR § 382.301(a) on July 9, 2008, by allowing Hamzik to operate a commercial motor vehicle before the company had received his verified negative controlled substance test result.  We grant the MHTC’s motion for summary decision as to Count I.


We deny the MHTC’s motion for summary decision as to Counts II, III, and IV.  The MHTC shall notify this Commission by December 23, 2009, whether we should schedule a hearing on these counts. 

SO ORDERED on December 9, 2009.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP  



Commissioner
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